# MT. HOLLY FISH & GAME ASSOCIATION BY-LAWS

#### I. OFFICERS

A. OFFICERS GENERALLY

(i) NUMBER, QUALIFICATION AND DESIGNATION.

The Officers of the Corporation shall be: President

First Vice-President Second Vice-President Recording Secretary Financial Secretary Treasurer

No two of which offices may be held by the same person, and may have such other officers and assistant officers and agents as the needs of the Corporation, in the judgment of the Board of Directors may require, and all of whom shall be elected or appointed by the Board as it may determine.

(ii) RESIGNATIONS. Any officer may resign at any time upon written notice to the corporation. The resignation shall be effective upon receipt thereof by the corporation or at such subsequent time as may be specified in the notice of resignation.

(iii) BONDING. The corporation may secure the fidelity of any or all of its officers by bond or otherwise. The Board may secure the fidelity of any or all of such officers by. bond or otherwise, and they shall have such authority and perform such duties in the management of the property and affairs of the corporation as may be provided by the By-Laws or as may be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors.

(iv) STANDARD OF CARE. Except as otherwise provided in the articles, an. officer shall perform his or her duties as an officer in good faith, in a manner he or she reasonably believes to be in the best interests of the corporation and with such care, including reasonable inquiry, skill and diligence, as a person of ordinary prudence would use under similar circumstances. A person who so performs his or her duties shall not be liable by reason of having been an officer of the corporation.

#### B. ELECTION AND TERM OF OFFICE.

At the next regular meeting following the Nomination of Officers in December, the Membership shall elect in January, the Officers and (1) one Director for the ensuing Calendar Year. Installation of the Director and officers shall be in January of that year.

#### C. SUBORDINATE OFFICERS, COMMITTEES AND AGENTS.

The Board of Directors may from time to time elect such other officers and appoint such committees, employees or other agents as the business of the corporation may require, including one or more assistant secretaries, and one or more assistant treasures, each of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority, and perform such duties as are provided in these bylaws or as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine. The Board of Directors may delegate to any officer or committee the power to elect subordinate officers and to retain or appoint employees or other agents, or committees thereof and to prescribe the authority and duties of such subordinate officers, employees or other agents.

#### D. REMOVAL OF OFFICERS AND AGENTS.

Any officer or agent of the corporation may be removed by the Board of Directors with or without cause, by a majority vote of the Board of Directors. The removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any person so removed. Election or appointment of an officer or agent shall not of itself create contract rights.

#### E. VACANCIES.

A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or any other cause, shall, be filled by the board of directors or by the officer or committee to which the power to fill such office has been delegated pursuant to provisions above, as the case may be, and if the office is one for which these bylaws prescribe a term, shall be filled for the unexpired portion of the term.

### F. AUTHORITY.

All officers of the corporation, as between themselves and the corporation, shall have such authority and perform such duties in the management of the corporation as may be provided by or pursuant to resolution or orders of the Board of Directors or in the absence of controlling provisions in the resolutions or orders of the Board of Directors, as may be determined by or pursuant to these bylaws.

(i) THE PRESIDENT. The President shall preside at all meetings of the Corporation and of the Board of Directors, perform all duties incident to this Office, appoint all committees and be an ex-officio member of all Committees. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the corporation and shall have general supervision over the business and operations of the corporation, subject however, to the control of the Board of Directors. The President shall sign execute, and acknowledge, in the name of the corporation, deeds, mortgages, contracts or other instruments authorized by the Board of Directors, except in cases where the signing and executing thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board of Directors, or by these bylaws, to some other officer or agent of the corporation; and, in general, shall perform all duties incident to the office of President and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned by the Board of Directors.

(ii) THE VICE-PRESIDENT. The Vice-President shall act in the absence of the President. In the absence of both the President and Vice-President, the Second Vice-President shall act temporarily.

(iii) THE RECORDING SECRETARY. The Recording Secretary shall keep the minutes and records of the Corporation and the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors and shall perform such other duties as are usually made a part of such office in like organizations. The Recording Secretary shall also have such duties as shall be directed by the Board of Directors. The Recording Secretary shall have the Corporate Seal in his keeping. The Recording Secretary or an assistant secretary shall attend all meetings of the Members and of the Board of Directors and shall record all votes of the Members and of the Board of Directors and the minutes of the meetings of the Members and of Directors and the minutes of the Board of Directors in a book or books to be kept for that purpose; shall see that notices are given and records and reports properly kept and filed by the corporation as required by law; shall be the custodian of the seal of the corporation under its seal; and, in general, shall perform all duties

incident to the office of Secretary, and such other duties as may from time to time be assigned by the Board of Directors or the President.

(iv) THE FINANCIAL SECRETARY. The Financial Secretary shall:

- 1. collect all dues and all other such monies received.
- 2. record dues and deposit dues to bank and transmit the deposit slip to the Treasurer.
- 3. issue all Membership Cards and affix his/her signature to same.
- 4. if needed and with approval of the Board of Directors, secure an assistant agent to help in collection of dues.
- 5. also have such duties as shall be directed by the Board of Directors.

(v) THE TREASURER. The Treasurer shall receive and disburse the funds of the Corporation. The Chairman of the Board of Directors, designated alternate Director, and Treasurer have signature authority for checks drawn on the Corporation. All disbursements shall be made upon receipt of vouchers, which shall be signed by the Treasurer. No checks or disbursements may be made in excess of \$4,000.00 without the approval of a majority of the Board of Directors at a special or regular meeting of Board of Directors. A record of such approval shall be made by the Recording Secretary. The Treasurer shall make monthly reports to the Board of Directors and the Membership of the Corporation. The Treasurer or an Assistant Treasurer shall have or provide for the custody of the funds or other property of the corporation; shall collect and receive or provide for the collection and receipt of moneys earned by or in any manner due to or received by the corporation; shall deposit all funds in his or her custody as Treasurer in such banks or other places of deposit as the Board of Directors may from time to time designate; shall, whenever so required by the Board of Directors, render an account showing all transactions as Treasurer and the financial condition of the corporation; and, in general, shall discharge such other duties as may from time to time be assigned by the Board of Directors or the President. One Director shall be appointed by the directors to review/audit the bank statement and financial books quarterly.

#### G. MISCELLANEOUS

(i) It shall not be necessary for the officers to be Directors, however, no Officer shall be elected who is not an active member in good standing of this Corporation. (ii) Officers of the Corporation shall be elected for (1) Calendar Year term in office. Vacancies of an office or officers, by reason of resigning, death, or reason beyond control of that office or officer, shall be filled by resolution of the Board of Directors until the next election of officers.

#### **II. MEMBERSHIP**

#### A. CLASSES

There shall be five (5) classes of membership, as follows:

Senior Membership Junior Membership Youth Membership Golden Age Life Membership Life Membership

Only members 18 years and older shall have voting privileges or a key to the clubhouse building. Members may obtain a key only upon signing the Mt. Holly Fish and Game (MHFG) Key Agreement document and paying a \$20.00 fee. Signed MHFG Key Agreements shall be filed and maintained at the MHFG Clubhouse by the Recording Secretary. Junior and Youth Members shall not have voting or key privileges. New members in the Senior, Junior and Youth classes will be reviewed and accepted, if approved, at the monthly meeting following the receipt of a completed application.

#### B. MEMBERSHIP YEAR AND DUES

Membership year is on a calendar year basis. Renewing members are current members in good standing who continue their membership to the following year. Renewing members are required to submit an application with their dues.

All dues are due and payable on or before **the last day of February** of each membership year. Renewing members who miss the dues deadline must pay the "new" membership rate for their class per the annual membership application. No exceptions. Members who allow their membership standing to lapse - that is, dues are not paid for one (1) membership year - must pay the "new" membership rate for their class per the annual membership application. In addition, the baseline date for calculating "consecutive service years" for GOLDEN AGE LIFE MEMBERSHIPS (see

C. iv below) resets to the membership year corresponding to the current application.

#### C. DEFINITIONS

- (i) SENIOR MEMBERSHIP DEFINITION. A Senior Member is one who is 18 years of age or older. The initial or "new" membership fee shall be forty (\$40.00) dollars and shall accompany the application for membership. The annual dues for each renewing Senior Member shall be thirty (\$30.00) dollars per year.
- (ii) JUNIOR MEMBERSHIP DEFINITION. A Junior Member is one who is 12 years of age but not 18 years of age. The initial or "new" Junior Membership shall be seven dollars and 50 cents (\$7.50) and shall accompany the application for membership. The annual dues for each renewing Junior Member shall be five (\$5.00) dollars. New and renewing Junior members must be sponsored by a Senior member in good standing. A Junior member must be accompanied by a Senior member in good standing while on club premises.
- (iii) YOUTH MEMBERSHIP DEFINITION. A Youth Member is one who is under 12 years of age. The initial or "new" Youth Membership shall be two dollars and fifty cents (\$2.50) and shall accompany the application for membership. The annual dues for each renewing Youth member shall be one (\$1.00) dollar. New and renewing Youth members must be sponsored by a Senior member in good standing. A Youth member must be accompanied by a Senior member in good standing while on club premises.
- (iv) GOLDEN AGE LIFE MEMBERSHIP. Any senior member 65 years of age or over with twenty (20) years consecutive service shall be eligible for a GOLDEN AGE LIFE MEMBERSHIP. There shall be no annual dues for Golden Age Life Members. It is the responsibility of members eligible for this membership to apply for it on the annual membership application. Members approved for the GOLDEN AGE LIFE MEMBERSHIP have a special card and MHFG pin issued to them. Approved members are required to pick these items up at a regular club meeting. Proof of age may be required.

 LIFE MEMBERSHIP. Any member with ten (10) years of consecutive service can purchase a Life membership for four hundred (\$400.00) dollars. LIFE MEMBERSHIPS must be approved by the Board of Directors.

#### **III. MEMBERS AND THEIR MEETINGS**

#### A. MEETINGS

Meetings of the Active members of the Corporation shall be held at the Club building on the property of the Corporation in the Township of South Middleton, Cumberland County, known as Mt. Holly Fish & Game Association, Inc., unless the Board of Directors shall determine upon a different place and shall give notice to the membership at least five (5) days prior to such change of place. Notice may be posted on one of the Member bulletin boards in the Club building.

(i) Monthly meetings shall be held the third (3rd) Monday of each month except November.

(ii) Special meetings of the Active members may be called at the direction of the Board of Directors or President or upon the written request of at least ten (10) members in good standing of the Corporation delivered to the Board of Directors through its Secretary who shall promptly notify the President of the Board of Directors, who shall in turn promptly call a meeting of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall at such meetings fix a time and place for such special meeting of the members and cause notice thereof to be given to the membership at least five (5) days prior to such meeting. Notice may be posted on one of the Member bulletin boards in the Club building. If the Board of Directors shall fail to call such meeting within fifteen (15) days after such request, the members so requesting the same may call such meeting by notice given as aforesaid.

#### B. QUORUM

The presence in person of a majority of the members entitled to vote shall constitute a quorum (10 senior members). If a regular meeting cannot be organized for want of a quorum (10 senior members), those present may adjourn the meeting and those attending, although less than a quorum, shall constitute a quorum for the purpose of transacting business.

#### C. REMOVALS

The Board of Directors may suspend from the corporation or cancel the membership of any member whenever and after said member has defended himself by a hearing. The best interest of the Corporation will be served.

#### **IV. DIRECTORS**

A. The business of the Corporation shall be managed by a Board of five (5) Directors who shall be elected by the active members, each to hold office until his successor is elected and qualified. For this purpose each individual member shall have but one vote. All Directors must be members in good standing of the Corporation. Directors shall be elected for a term of five years. One Director shall be elected every year.

B. A majority of the Directors in office shall constitute a quorum and the acts of a majority of the Directors present at a meeting, at which such a quorum is present, shall be the acts of the Board of Directors. Provided that if all the Directors shall severally or collectively consent in writing to any action to be taken by the Corporation, such action shall be as valid corporate action as though it has been duly authorized at a meeting of the Board of Directors. Such authorization is to be presented to the President in a sealed envelope. In an emergency situation demanding immediate action in order to protect the welfare of MHFG, the President may make a deciding vote in the absence of a quorum.

C. The office of any Director absent from three (3) consecutive meetings of the Board without reasonable excuse, may be declared vacant by a majority vote of the remaining members of the Board of Directors.

D. Vacancies on the Board of Directors shall be filled by a majority of the remaining members of the Board though less than a quorum, and each person so elected shall be Director until his successor is elected by the members, who may make such election at the next annual meeting of the members or at any special meeting duly called for that purpose and held prior thereto.

E. The Board shall have power by resolution to fix the time and place for its regular meeting to be held with or without formal notice, but in case of change in time or place of a regular meeting from that so fixed and. for all special meetings, written

notice of every such meeting of the Board of Directors shall be given to each Director at least three (3) days prior to the day named for the meeting. Reasonable announcement of meetings of the Directors may, at the discretion of the Board of Directors, be made in a daily newspaper in Carlisle, and every meeting shall be open to the members of all classes of membership at which any member in good standing shall be heard upon any matter under consideration by the Board of Directors before action taken. And further, in the agenda of every meeting of the Board of Directors, time should be given to members of the Corporation in good standing to speak upon the subject of, or make suggestions or constructive criticism for, "The Good of the Corporation". Attendance by members at such meetings is hereby declared to be most welcome and accordingly is encouraged.

F. The retiring President shall become an ex-officio member of the Board for one (1) year and shall also become Chairman of the Nomination Committee for that year.

G. Directors regular monthly meetings shall be on the third (3rd) Monday of each month, 1/2 hour before regular business meetings of the Corporation.

H. Chairman of the Board of Directors shall be elected by the five members of the Board of Directors at the January meeting.

#### $V_{\cdot}$ DIRECTORS - POWERS AND PERSONAL LIABILITY

#### A. GENERAL RULE

Unless otherwise provided by statute, all powers vested by law in the corporation shall be exercised by or under the authority of, and the business and affairs of the corporation shall be managed under the direction of, the Board of Directors.

#### B. STANDARD OF CARE; JUSTIFIABLE RELIANCE.

A director shall stand in a fiduciary relation to the corporation and shall perform his or her duties as a director, including duties as a member of any committee of the board upon which the director may serve, in good faith, in a manner the director reasonably believes to be in the best interests of the corporation and with such care, including reasonable inquiry, skill and diligence, as a person of ordinary prudence would use under similar circumstances. In performing his or her duties, a director shall be entitled to rely in good faith on information, opinions, reports or statements, including financial statements and other financial data, in each case prepared or presented by any of the following:

(1) One or more officers or employees of the corporation whom the director reasonably believes to be reliable and competent in the matters presented.

(2) Counsel, public accountants or other persons as to matters which the director reasonably believes to be within the professional or expert competence of such person.

(3) A committee of the board upon which the director does not serve, duly designated in accordance with law, as to matters within its designated authority, which committee the director reasonably believes to merit confidence.

A director shall not be considered to be acting in good faith if the director has knowledge concerning the matter in question that would cause his or her reliance to be unwarranted.

#### C. CONSIDERATION OF FACTORS.

In discharging the duties of their respective positions, the Board of Directors, committees of the board and individual directors may, in considering the best interests of the corporation, consider the effects of any action upon employees, upon suppliers and customers of the corporation and upon communities in which offices or other establishments of the corporation are located, and all other pertinent factors. The consideration of those factors shall not constitute a violation of subsection (B).

#### D. PRESUMPTION.

Absent breach of fiduciary duty, lack of good faith or self-dealing, actions taken as a director or any failure to take any action shall be presumed to be in the best interests of the corporation.

#### E. PERSONAL LIABILITY OF DIRECTORS.

(1) A director shall not be personally liable, as such, for monetary damages for any action taken, or any failure to take any action, unless:

(i) the director has breached or failed to perform the duties of his or her office under this section; and

(ii) the breach or failure to perform constitutes self-dealing, willful misconduct or recklessness.

(2) The provisions of paragraph (1) shall not apply to the responsibility or liability of a director pursuant to any criminal statute, or the liability of a director for the payment of taxes pursuant to local, state or federal law.

#### F. NOTATION OF DISSENT:

A director who is present at a meeting of the Board of Directors, or of a committee of the board, at which action on any corporate matter is taken shall be presumed to have assented to the action taken unless his or her dissent is entered in the minutes of the meeting or unless the director files a written dissent to the action with the secretary of the meeting before the adjournment thereof or transmits the dissent in writing to the secretary of the corporation immediately after the adjournment of the meeting. The right to dissent shall not apply to a director who voted in favor of the action. Nothing in this section shall bar a director from asserting that minutes of the meeting incorrectly omitted his or her dissent if, promptly upon receipt of a copy of such minutes, the director notifies the secretary in writing, of the asserted omission or inaccuracy.

#### **VI. RULES OF CONDUCT**

Rules for the conduct of members and guests shall be posted in the club house and shall be formulated by the Board of Directors and enforced by the Committee on Grounds and Buildings. Violators shall be punished by forfeiture of club privileges of periods to be set forth in the rules and shall be determined by the Board of Directors.

#### **VII. AMENDMENTS**

The Board of Directors, by majority vote, shall have the power to make, alter and repeal the By-Laws of the Corporation, subject to the approval of the majority of the active membership present at the meeting at which such By-Laws are submitted for their approval. Provided, however, such action of the members in altering or amending these By-Laws does not in any manner affect the rights, legal, contractual, property or otherwise nor any action whatsoever, affecting the same shall be valid, without the consent of a majority of the members. There shall be no change in stated rights of Corporation or stated rights of Membership.

#### VIII. DUES, ASSESSMENTS, ETC.

A. The Board of Directors shall be and hereby authorized and empowered to levy dues, and to fix the amounts thereof and to make them payable at such times and by such methods of collection as the Board of Directors may prescribe.

B. The Board of Directors may suspend or cancel the membership of any member who fails to pay his dues at the time such dues are payable, and may provide such conditions of reinstatement as it shall deem necessary; delinquency due to active Military service excluded.

#### IX. COMMITTEES & THEIR DUTIES

#### A. EXECUTIVE AND OTHER COMMITTEES.

(i) Establishment and powers. The Board of Directors may, by resolution adopted by a majority of the directors in office, establish one or more committees to consist of one or more directors of the corporation. Any committee, to the extent provided in the resolution of the Board of Directors, shall have and may exercise all of the powers and authority of the Board of Directors except that a committee shall not have any power or authority as to the following:

(a) the submission to shareholders of any action requiring approval of shareholders under the Business Corporation Law.

(b) the creation or filling of vacancies on the Board of Directors.

(c) the adoption, amendment or repeal of these bylaws.

(d) the amendment or repeal of any resolution of the Board that by its terms is amendable or subject to repeal.

(e) action on matters committed by a resolution of the Board of Directors to another committee of the Board.

(ii) ALTERNATE COMMITTEE MEMBERS. The Board of Directors may designate one or more directors as alternate members of any committee who may replace any absent or disqualified member at any meeting of the committee or for the purposes of any written action by the committee. In the absence or disqualification of a member and alternate member or members of a committee, the member or members thereof present at any meeting and not disqualified from voting, whether or not constituting a quorum, may unanimously appoint another director to act at the meeting in the place of the absent or disqualified member.

(iii) TERM. Each committee of the board shall serve at the pleasure of the board.

(iv) COMMITEE PROCEDURES. The term "Board of Directors" or "board", when used in any provision of these bylaws relating to the organization or procedures of or the manner of taking action by the Board of Directors, shall be construed to include and refer to any executive or other committee of the board.

#### B. GROUNDS AND BUILDINGS COMMITTEE

There shall be a committee composed of three (3) members in good standing to be known as the Committee on Grounds and Buildings. The duties of this Committee shall be taking Charge of all real and personal property of the club and see that the same is in a good state of repair among other things. They shall serve for one (1) year or until their successors are appointed. Notice of Ground Rules shall be posted at all times inside the Building on the Bulletin Board.

#### X. CLUB RENTALS

#### A. CLUB RENTAL PROCEDURES AND RULES

- 1. No alcohol or illegal drugs are permitted on the club grounds. NO SMOKING in the clubhouse.
- All rentals shall be brought before the Board of Directors 60 Days prior to newsletter/schedules being printed. Newsletter/schedules are distributed in December-Rentals will need to be in by 60 days prior to the proposed rental date.
- 3. Club rentals shall be restricted to members with 2 years of good standing. The cost to the member in good standing is \$100.00.
- 4. All money shall be paid 30 days prior to rental.
- 5. All members/organizations renting the club shall sign a letter of agreement.
- 6. The club shall not be rented out more than 1 day per month. Any exceptions will be brought before the Directors for approval/rejection.
- 7. During rentals all ranges will be closed unless otherwise noted.
- 8. If the club is rented by another organization/member, it cannot be used for personal gain without approval of Directors.

9. An officer must be present at all rentals. If an officer is not available for the rental it should be denied.

10. The cost to Non-members for rental is \$750 with Director approval. In addition, a cleaning deposit of \$250 will be required.

11. The club must be cleaned up after the rental to the attending officer's discretion. When the club is cleaned to attending officer's discretion, the cleaning deposit of \$250 will be refunded. If the club is not cleaned to the attending officer's discretion the non-member will lose the \$250.

The above By-Laws were revised on January 15, 2018 by the Board of Directors of the Mt. Holly Fish & Game Association, Inc., and are effective as of January 15, 2018.

#### XI. MISCELLANEOUS

Pursuant to Section VI. **RULES OF CONDUCT**, the Board of Directors have established the flowing 4 categories of rules for the safety of club members and property: 1) GROUND RULES, 2) RIFLE and PISTOL RANGE RULES, 3) POND RULES and 4), ARCHERY RANGE RULES. In anticipation that changing conditions will require periodic amendment or modification of these Rules by the Board for the continued safety of club members and property, the specific Rules and their corresponding effective dates will be posted in the clubhouse and at the appropriate location. They are hereby incorporated by reference.

# **GROUND RULES**

#### Effective January 15, 2018

- 1) There shall be no intoxicating beverages or illegal drugs on the club grounds or premises.
- 2) All shooting on club grounds shall be done on the designated ranges, according to posted regulations. (**RIFLE and PISTOL RANGE RULES**)
- All shooting ranges shall be closed 2 hours before, during and after any social activities.
  Exception: All ranges will be closed during scheduled special events for the <u>entire day</u>.
- 4) Junior members under 16 years of age shall not be allowed to discharge any firearms on the premises unless accompanied by a senior member in good standing.
- 5) Guests will be permitted to visit the grounds provided he or she is accompanied by a Senior member in good standing. However, non-members are excluded from using the shooting and fishing facilities.
- 6) Club keys shall be available to all members in good standing for a fee. They may be obtained from any officer or director. The directors have the right to object to any undesirable person.
- 7) Open hunting and fishing (by members only) will be allowed on corporation grounds, except within legal safety zones around buildings.
- 8) No loaded firearms shall be permitted in building at any time except during the block shoots and they shall be loaded only when extended out of designated windows.
- 9) At the regular monthly meeting there shall be no social activities until after the adjournment of the official business meeting.
- 10) The work on the grounds and buildings shall be planned by the Building and Grounds or other designated committees.
- 11) Loan of or use of building by another organization shall be limited to approval by the Board of Directors.
- 12) Any organization/person using the building is responsible for removal of any debris or trash created by that organization/person. The building shall be left as found.
- 13) No unattended fires shall be allowed within fifty (50) feet of the buildings.
- 14) No member under the age of 18 can camp on club grounds without having an adult member present at all times.
- 15) Any member caught willfully destroying or damaging club property or grounds will be brought before the directors for review of membership and possible expulsion.
- 16) Overnight parking on club grounds is prohibited.

#### The above rules are required to protect club members and property

# **RIFLE and PISTOL RANGE RULES**

#### Effective January 15, 2018

- 1. No intoxicating beverages or illegal drugs as defined by law will be allowed.
- 2. Shooting time is 8 a.m. till dusk every day.
- 3. If more than one shooter is using the range those shooters will establish a range officer to coordinate shooting and posting targets.
- 4. All shooting must be done within confines of the backstops.
- 5. All guns will be loaded while pointed down range.
- 6. No targets may be checked until all guns are unloaded and actions open.
- 7. Only club members in good standing may use this facility. Guests or non- members are not permitted to use the range. A guest or non-member must be accompanied by a member in good standing.
- 8. A member may have one guest/non-member to observe but the guest/non-member is not permitted to use the range.
- 9. Any member in good standing that has a guest present, the member is responsible for the guest's actions.
- 10. The Range areas will be policed and shooters shall remove all brass, trash and targets when finished.
- 11. No random shooting. All shooting shall be confined to the targets displayed on specified frames.
- 12. Fully automatic weapons are not permitted.
- 13. Maximum clip capacity for a Rifle is 6.
- 14. Maximum clip capacity for a Pistol is 15.
- 15. Must have at least 3 second intervals between shots.
- 16. Human silhouette targets are not permitted on the Rifle Range.
- 17. Human silhouette are permitted on the Pistol Range.
- 18. No shooting cans, bottles on the range or other destructive devices.
- 19. All shooters must be considerate of other shooters.
- 20. Shotguns with slugs may use the rifle range; any shotgun that needs patterned will be shot in target area beside the red blockhouse.
- 21. Shooting clay birds is permitted on the rifle range only when no one else is using the rife range.
- 22. No shooting at the 200 yd. area. (This is only used for the running deer).

# Note: Any violation will be reviewed by the directors and could result in loss of club membership.

## POND RULES

#### Effective January 15, 2018

- 1. No ice fishing.
- 2. No ice skating.
- 3. No boating.
- 4. No swimming.
- 5. No fish of any kind may be placed in the pond.
- 6. Only members are permitted to fish.
- 7. All Youth and Junior members must be accompanied by a Senior member in good standing while on the pond and its surrounding area.
- 8. All appropriate safety and usage related GROUND RULES apply to the pond and its surrounding area and are incorporated here by reference.

# **ARCHERY RANGE RULES**

#### Effective January 15, 2018

- 1. No broadheads.
- 2. No pistol or rifle are permitted to be used on the archery range or its target.
- 3. All Youth and Junior members must be accompanied by a Senior member in good standing while on the ARCHERY RANGE and its surrounding area.
- All appropriate safety and usage related GROUND RULES and PISTOL AND RIFLE RANGE RULES apply to the ARCHERY RANGE and are incorporated here by reference.